
Board Meeting 
Agenda (open)
8.00 a.m. Wednesday 31 July 2024  
Limelight Room, Level 3 Te Pokapū Aotea Centre, 50 Mayoral Drive, Auckland 

1 S7(2)(a),(d),(f)(i) LGOIMA 1987 
2 S7(2)(f)(i),(h),(i) LGOIMA 1987 
3 S7(2)(f)(i),(h) LGOIMA 1987 
4 Withheld pursuant to NZX Listing Rules 
5 S7(2)(f)(i) LGOIMA 1987 

Item Subject Action Trust/Co. Start Time Duration 

CONFIDENTIAL MEETING OPEN 

PROCEDURAL 

1 Agenda and Apologies To Note T & C 8.00 a.m. 45 mins 

2 Confidential Minutes 26 June 2024 and Action 
Tracker, Vicki Salmon 

To Approve T & C 

3 Board Agenda Discussion and Committee 
Verbal Updates, Vicki Salmon 

• Risk and Finance Committee, Carol
Cheng, (24 July 2024)

To Discuss T & C 

4 Health and Safety Report 1, Lynn Johnson and 
Priyanka Victor 

To Note T & C 

CE CONFIDENTIAL UPDATE 

5 CE Confidential Update 2, Nick Hill To Note T & C 8.45 a.m. 30 mins 

APPROVAL PAPERS 

6 Three Year Plan 3, Nick Hill To Approve T & C 9.15 a.m. 45 mins 

7 Statement of Intent 2024-27 3, Nick Hill To Approve T & C 

8 TAU End of Year FY24 Summary Reporting 
Packs 4, Justine White 

To Approve T & C 

9 Q4 Risk Report to Council Risk and Finance 
Committee 5, Justine White 

To Approve T & C 

BREAK 10.00 a.m. 30 mins 

10 Major Events Business Cases 2, Annie Dundas 

1. Gay Games
2. Synthony
3. ASB Classic

To Approve C 10.30 a.m. 1 hour 

11 Destination Partnership Programme Advisory 
Group Membership 5, Annie Dundas 

To Approve C 



Board Meeting   
Agenda (open)    

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
6 S7(2)(f)(i),(h),(i) LGOIMA 1987 
7 Withheld pursuant to NZX Listing Rules 
8 S7(2)(f)(i),(h) LGOIMA 1987 
 

Item Subject Action Trust/Co. Start Time Duration 

MEETING WITH LOCAL BOARD CHAIRS AND DEPUTY CHAIRS 

12 TAU Board and Upper Harbour and Hibiscus 
and Bays Local Board Chairs and Deputy Chairs 
Meeting and Update – North Harbour Stadium 6 

To Discuss T 11.30 a.m. 30 mins 

LUNCH 12.00 p.m. 30 mins 

CONFIDENTIAL MEETING CLOSED AND PUBLIC MEETING OPEN 

PROCEDURAL 

13 Register of Directors’ Interests and Rolling 12-
Month Board Work Programme, Vicki Salmon 

To Note T & C 12.30 p.m. 5 mins 

14 Public Minutes 26 June 2024, Vicki Salmon To Approve T & C 

CE REPORT AND PERFORMANCE REPORTS 

15 CE Report, Nick Hill  

1. Financial Performance Report 7 
2. Current Operational Risks (RC) 
3. CRM Board Update (RC) 

To Note T & C 12.35 a.m. 45 mins 

PUBLIC MEETING CLOSED AND CONFIDENTIAL MEETING OPEN 

DISCUSSION AND NOTING PAPERS 

16 Draft TAU Climate-Related Financial 
Disclosure8, Justine White and Parin Rafiei-
Thompson  

To Note T & C 1.20 p.m.  40 mins 

17 North Harbour Stadium LTP Process Draft 
Review Report 6, Nick Hill 

To Note T 

18 Western Springs Stadium EOI Update 6, Nick 
Hill 

To Note T 

INTEGRATED CULTURAL ORGANISATIONS  

19 Integrated Cultural Organisations, Nick Hill  To Discuss  T 2.00 p.m.  30 mins 

BOARD ONLY TIME 

20 Board Only Time To Note T & C 2.30 p.m. 10 mins 

 Close of Meeting   2.40 p.m.  



 

  

July 2024 
 

 
 ‘  
 

Name Position Directorships/Trusteeships Other Interests Possible Conflicts 

Vicki Salmon  Chair  ● Coopers Creek Vineyard Ltd (Director and 
Shareholder) 

● Salmon and Partners Ltd (Director and 
Shareholder) 

● Remuera Golf Club (President) 

 ● Prior to Vicki Salmon’s appointment as Chair of 
Tātaki Auckland Unlimited, Vicki was a member 
of the Eden Park Trust Board (EPTB). Vicki 
resigned as a member of the EPTB on 27 March 
2023 and no longer has any interest in EPTB or 
the Eden Park organisation.  

Jennah Wootten Deputy Chair ● Perpetual Guardian Holdings Limited (Director) 
● Generate Global (Director and Shareholder) 

● Aktive – Auckland Sports & Recreation 
(CEO) 

 

Alastair Carruthers Non-Executive Director ● Homeland NZ Enterprises Ltd (Director and 
Shareholder) 

● Homeland NZ Trading Ltd (Director and 
Shareholder) 

● Carruthers Consulting Ltd (Director and 
Shareholder) 

● Television New Zealand Ltd (Chair) 
● NZ Film Commission (Chair)  
● Cornwall Park Trust Board (Trustee) 
● Ringa Hora Services – Workforce Development 

Council (Director)Auckland Regional Amenities 
Funding Board (Board Member) 

● Auckland War Memorial Museum Trust Board 
(Trustee) 

 ● The ARAFB provides operating funding to some 
entities who occupy and perform in AU facilities. 

● Homeland hosts events for Auckland Convention 
Bureau and other Tātaki Auckland Unlimited 
funded entities from time to time.   

Carol Cheng Non-Executive Director ● Teaching Council New Zealand (Governing 
Council Member) 

● Hong Consulting Limited (Director and 
Shareholder) 

● CYWE Trustee Limited (Director and 
Shareholder) 

● Eastland Property Services Limited (Shareholder) 
● Auckland International Airport Limited 

(Shareholder) 
● Spark New Zealand Limited (Shareholder) 
● Comvita Limited (Shareholder) 
● SkyCity Entertainment Group Limited 

(Shareholder) 
● Microgem International Plc (Shareholder)  
● The Asia New Zealand Foundation Te Whītau 

Tūhono (Trustee) 

 ● Asia New Zealand Foundation provided 
sponsorship for Auckland Culture Festivals  

● Asia New Zealand Foundation provided 
sponsorship for Guo Pei Exhibition at the 
Auckland Art Gallery. 

 

Hinurewa Te Hau (Hinu) Non-Executive Director ● Matariki Cultural Foundation (Trustee) 
● Matariki Global Holdings Limited (Director) 
● Taamaki Records Limited (Director) 
● Otamatea Pioneer & Kauri Museum Board (Chair) 

● Chair of WOMEX (World Music Expo) 
Pan Indigenous Network representing 
36 indigenous nations globally 

 



 

  

● Ringa Hora Services – Workforce Development 
Council (Director) 

Jen Rolfe  Non-Executive Director ● Rainger & Rolfe (Director) 
● Barbara Andrew Family Trust (Trustee) 
● Thomas Family Trust (Trustee) 
● Thomas Number 2 Family Trust (Trustee) 

 

● New Zealand Marketing Association 
(Member) 
 

● Prior to Jen Rolfe’s appointment to the Tātaki 
Auckland Unlimited (formerly RFA) Board, 
Rainger & Rolfe provided some marketing 
services to RFA. 

● Rainger & Rolfe is providing marketing services to 
Watercare.  

● Rainger & Rolfe is providing marketing services to 
Martin Jenkins (occasional Tātaki Auckland 
Unlimited consultant).  

Graeme Stephens  ● New Zealand Hotel Holdings (Director) 
● Kamari Consulting Limited (Director and 

Shareholder) 
● SkyCity Entertainment Group (Shareholder)) 

  

Dan Te Whenua Walker Non-Executive Director ● New Zealand Māori Tourism Society (Deputy 
Chair) 

● Whanau Mārama Parenting Limited (Director) 
● Korowai Hikuroa Consulting Limited (Director and 

Shareholder) 
● Ringa Hora Services – Workforce Development 

Council (Director) 
● Pou Tuarā o Te Rūnanga o Ngāti Ruanui Trust 

(Shareholder)  
● Ngati Ruanui Tahua Limited (Shareholder) 
● Ngati Ruanui Fishing Limited (Shareholder) 
● Te Topuni Ngarahu General Partner Limited 

(Shareholder) 
● Māori Creative Foundation (Trustee) 
● Meremere Marae Charitable Trust (Trustee) 
● Stanmore Bay Primary School (Chair) 
● Massey University Executive Education (Advisory 

Board Member) 
● University of Auckland Māori Alumni (Trustee and 

Chair of Executive Committee) 
● Sarcoma Foundation NZ (Board member) 
● Child Cancer Foundation (Board member) 
● Ronald McDonald House (Board member) 

 
 

 

 



July 2024 

 

  

 

 

Month Shareholder Accountability Operations & 
Business Planning 

Strategy and Business Focus Board and Committee Dates 

Jul-24 • SOI FY 25 

• TAU End of Year Financial 
Reporting Packs 

• Q4 Risk Report to Council 

 

• CEO Report 

• H&S Report 

• Three Year Plan 

• Integrated Cultural Organisations 

 

• Risk and Finance Committee – 17 July 

• Board Meeting – 31 July 

Aug-24 • Q4 Performance Report 

• TAUL and TAUT Annual Report 

• Financial reporting for the year 
ended 30 June 2024 

• Climate Related Disclosures  
 

• CEO Report 

• H&S Report 

• Board Workshop: Western Springs 
Precinct 

• Capital Projects Committee – 14 August 

• Māori Engagement Committee – 15 August 

• Risk and Finance Committee – 21 August (FY24 
Statements) 

• Board Meeting – 27 August 

Sep-24  • CEO Report 

• H&S Report 

  

Oct-24 • Public Board meeting - performance 
against SOI targets for Year Ended 
30 June 2024 

• Q1 Performance Report 

• CEO Report 

• H&S Report 

 

• Workshop: Duplication of Activity 
with Council Group 

 

 

• Capital Projects Committee – 15 Oct 

• Remuneration Committee – 17 Oct 

• Board Meeting – 30 Oct (Public Board Meeting) 

Nov-24 • Q1 Risk Report to Council • CEO Report 

• H&S Report 
 

• Board Workshop: National Visitor 
Levy 

 

 

• Risk and Finance Committee – 13 Nov 

• Māori Engagement Committee – 21 Nov 

Dec-24  • CEO Report 

• H&S Report 

 

 • Board Meeting – 3 Dec 

 
 
 
 



July 2024 

 

  

 

Month Shareholder Accountability Operations & 
Business Planning 

Strategy and Business Focus Board and Committee Dates 

Jan-25 • Letter of Expectation 

• Financial reporting for the ½ Year 
ended 31 December 2024 

• Q2 Risk Report 

• CEO Report 

• H&S Report 

 • Remuneration Committee – TBC 

• Risk and Finance Committee – TBC (½Y 
Accounts) 

• Board Meeting – TBC (½Y Acts)  

Feb-25 • Q2 Performance Report  

 

• CEO Report 

• H&S Report 

• Board Strategy Session  

• Board Workshop: New Zealand 
Maritime Museum Masterplan 

 
 

• Māori Engagement Committee – TBC 

• Capital Projects Committee – TBC  

• Board Meeting – TBC  

Mar-25 • 2025 – 27 Statement of Intent 
Amendments 

• Draft 2025 -2028 Statement of 
Intent 

 

• CEO Report 

• H&S Report 

 • Risk and Finance Committee – TBC 

• Capital Projects Committee – TBC 

• Board Meeting – TBC 
 

Apr-25 • Q3 Risk Report to Council 

• Q3 Performance Report  

 

• CEO Report 

• H&S Report 

• Board Evaluation 
(biennial – next due: 
2026) 

• Board Workshop: Auckland Art 
Gallery Toi o Tāmaki Strategy 

 

 

• Capital Projects Committee – TBC 

• Board Meeting – TBC 

May-25  • CEO Report 

• H&S Report 

• Annual insurance 
renewal 

• Auditor engagement 
and fees  

• Board Workshop: TBC 

 

• Risk and Finance Committee – TBC 

• Māori Engagement Committee – TBC 

• Board Meeting – TBC 

 

Jun-25 • Public Board meeting - shareholder 
feedback on SOI 

• CEO Report 

• H&S Report 

• Board Workshop: TBC 

 

• Remuneration Committee – TBC 

• Capital Projects Committee – TBC 

• Board Meeting – TBC (Public Board Meeting) 

 
 



BOARD MEETING 

HELD ON: Wednesday 26 June 2024 at 8.00 a.m. 

AT: Waihorotiu Room, L4 Te Pokapū Aotea Centre, Auckland 

PRESENT: Vicki Salmon  Chair 
Jennah Wootten Deputy Chair 
Alastair Carruthers  
Carol Cheng  
Hinurewa te Hau 
Jen Rolfe 
Graeme Stephens 
Dan Walker (Teams) 

Desley Simpson Deputy Mayor and Lead Councillor (Teams) 

APOLOGIES: None 

ATTENDED:    Executive Team Nick Hill Chief Executive, Marissa Brindley 

representing Pam Ford Director Investment & 
Industry, Helen Te Hira Director Māori Outcomes, 
Kevin Buley Director Auckland Zoo, Annie Dundas 
Director Destination, Lynn Johnson Chief People 
Officer, Mandy Kennedy Chief Digital Officer, Kirsten 
Lacy Director Auckland Art Gallery, Vincent 
Lipanovich Director NZMM, James Parkinson 
Director Auckland Stadiums, Justine White Chief 
Operating Officer, Glen Crichton Acting Director 
Performing Arts, Jane Waddel representing Shelley 
Watson Director Marketing, Comms & Growth 

Sarah Johnstone-Smith CCO Governance Auckland Council (Teams) 
James Robinson Head of Strategy and Planning 
Dilshad Singh  Equal Justice Project 
Sabreen Islam  Equal Justice Project 
Chris Gregory   Media Manager 
Parin Rafiei-Thompson Head of Climate Innovation and Sustainability 
Marlies Wilson   Senior Sustainability Assets Advisor 
Priyanka Victor  Head of Health and Safety 
Stefanie Tipping Digital Products Manager 
Husain Al-Badry Associate Director Innovation and Growth, Datacom 
Tim Kingsley-Smith Company Secretary & Legal Counsel 

 

Nick Hill, Justine White, and Tim Kingsley-Smith joined the meeting. 

1. AGENDA AND APOLOGIES

The Chair opened the meeting and a karakia was recited.

The Chair noted that there were no apologies.

2. 29 MAY 2024 AND 31 MAY 2024 CONFIDENTIAL MINUTES AND ACTION TRACKER

The Board and Management discussed action point 1 and the Auckland Council Group Shared Services
(GSS) programme. 

S7(2)(f)(i),(i) LGOIMA 1987











 

 

 
• EJP presented to the Board and noted that EJP is a university student-led group that is 

focussed on climate change and inter-generational equity. EJP commended TAU for reducing 
its carbon emissions and waste and for TAU and Zoo achieving their respective Toitū 
Envirocare certifications. The group’s view is TAU does a good job of being transparent and 
publishing its results as part of the council’s CRD reporting but could do more in the terms of 
workshops with the community and staff training on climate change and sustainability.  
 

• EJP noted that the decarbonisation project at the Gallery has been a resounding success and 
looks forward to seeing TAU continue its decarbonisation programme across its venues. The 
decarbonisation project at Go Meda Stadium, Mt Smart will be a significant step forward and 
TAU should consider promoting its decarbonisation projects with additional signage at its 
venues to improve public awareness.  
 

• The Board thanked EJP for its presentation and noted its appreciation for EJP’s advocacy. The 
group has clearly looked closely at TAU’s operations and has made some good suggestions to 
TAU such as improving community engagement at TAU’s venues and better promoting TAU’s 
climate change and sustainability work – in particular, TAU’s significant decarbonisation 
projects.  
 

The Board noted the presentation from EJP and thanked EJP for its submission to the Board.  
 
Parin Rafiei-Thompson and Marlies Wison left the meeting.  

 
13. STATEMENT OF INTENT 2024-27 – CONSIDERATION OF SHAREHOLDER COMMENTS 

 
Nick Hill and Justine White spoke to the papers.  
 

• The Chair noted that the Statement of Intent 2024-27 (SOI) reflects the progress that TAU has 
made over the last year. The organisation continues to work hard to develop and implement 
operational improvements, and improved technology across the business. While the last few 
years have been difficult for TAU, the organisation is now stable and can plan ahead with 
confidence.  
 

• The Board noted that TAU is committed to supporting greater alignment with Auckland Council 
and the Council Group on the Group Shared Services programme. The programme will remove 
duplication and make the Group more efficient. Capital funding and Māori Outcomes are areas 
of focus for TAU’s shareholder, and TAU will accordingly look at ways to improve its monitoring 
and reporting in these areas.  
 

• Management noted that the final SOI will be considered by the Board at its upcoming July board 
meeting. The Board thanked Management for its work on the SOI.  
 

The Board: 
 

1. Noted the proposed approach to responding to shareholder comments on the draft 
TAU Statement of Intent 2024-27 and provide feedback; and 

 
2. Noted that the changes proposed in this paper will be reflected in the final TAU SOI 

2024-27, which will come to the board for final approval at the July meeting. 
 

14. CE REPORT  
 

Nick Hill spoke to the paper.  
 
General 

 

• Management updated the Board on the AFS sale and negotiations with SailGP. Eke Panuku, 
the Harbour Master and other stakeholders are working hard to bring the SailGP event to 
Auckland.  
 



• The Board noted that several stadium reports were recently released pursuant to a LGOIMA
request and asked that Management circulate the reports – and any commentary provided with
the reports – to the Board. (ACTION POINT)

• Management noted that TAU is likely to achieve its budget and visitation targets for the year
despite it being a challenging year. Attendance at cultural institutions was very good and
although some significant events at Auckland Stadium venues were cancelled for external
reasons, high attendance at other stadium events largely filled the gap left by the cancellations.

• TAU has worked hard following the restructure and the leadership team is proud of what has
been achieved and is positive about the future. The Board agreed that TAU delivering its visitor
and revenue numbers this year – particularly in a ‘softening’ economic environment – is an
outstanding result.

•

• The Board queried why TAU is not meeting its ‘participation of children’ numbers. Management
noted that the relevant Key Performance Indicator (KPI) measures school curriculum
programme participation at TAU’s cultural institution, and anecdotally more schools are
scheduling and then cancelling visits. When a school cancels a visit, it is usually too late to fill
the gap left by the cancellation. The main barrier for schools attending TAU’s cultural institutions
is transportation costs, so TAU is looking at ways to further support schools with that challenge.
While the organisation is not achieving this KPI it is achieving its funding targets for its school
curriculum programmes.

• Management noted that TAU has been engaging with the Upper Harbour, and Hibiscus and
Bays local board-led working group regarding the future of North Harbour Stadium (NHS). TAU
has provided requested information and engagement with the local boards has been positive.
The Chairs and Deputy Chairs of the Upper Harbour, and Hibiscus and Bays local boards are
scheduled to meet with the Board at the next TAU Board meeting.

• Management updated the Board on the Western Springs Stadium (WSS) expression of interest
(EOI) process. The EOI was released three weeks ago and at this point the process is on track.
The aim of the process is to create a fair and transparent process to help develop and consider
the options for the future of WSS. Feedback received to date has been supportive and
constructive.

• The Board noted that the shareholder comments on TAU’s SOI say under the heading Māori
Outcomes that “Direction will be provided by council’s Ngā Mātārae team for a whole of group
approach in this area” – and queried the extent to which TAU is “directed” by Ngā Mātārae
given TAU is an independent CCO with its own Māori Outcomes plan. Management noted that
first and foremost TAU, takes direction from the TAU Board, but it also takes direction from its
shareholder and recognises and supports Auckland Council’s goal of ensuing that the whole of
the Auckland Council Group takes a consistent approach. Deputy Mayor Simpson agreed to
discuss the point – and its potential ambiguity – with Mayor Brown.

The Board noted the CE Report.  

The Chair closed the public meeting and opened the confidential meeting. 

Deputy Mayor Simpson, Sarah Johnstone-Smith, Chris Gregory and the ELT left the meeting. Lynn 
Johnson, Kevin Buley, and Priyanka Victor joined the meeting.  

Graeme Stephens left the meeting at 12.12 p.m.

15. HEALTH AND SAFETY REPORT

Lynn Johnson Kevin Buley, and Priyanka Victor spoke to the paper. 

Avian Influenza

S7(2)(f)(i),(h),LGOIMA 1987



• Management updated the Board on preparations for the arrival of avian influenza (bird flu),
particularly at Auckland Zoo – which has a significant number of rare native birds. Experts agree
that bird flu has now spread to the point where it will not recede as it has previously and will
instead become globally endemic in the next few years. The biggest impacts on New Zealand
are likely to be seen in the poultry industry and on its native bird population. Given bird flu will
be a new disease in New Zealand, it is difficult to tell how severe the impact will be on New
Zealand’s various native bird species.

• Management noted that the Zoo is focussed on what its initial response will be to the arrival of
bird flu – including birds the Zoo cares for and the keepers that care for them. Controlling wild
birds that fly into or live in the Zoo grounds will help mitigate the spread of bird flu.

Dan Walker left the meeting at 1.10 p.m. Graeme Stephens rejoined the meeting at 1.13 p.m. 

• The Board endorsed Management’s bird flu preparations and noted that it is ready to support
Management on any urgent matters related to bird flu – for example, the construction of
additional quarantine aviaries at the Zoo. When bird flu does arrive, it will be important to
educate the public on the nature of bird flu to allay any unfounded fears. Management thanked
the Board for its support.

Health and Safety Report 

• Management noted that there were no significant health and safety issues or notifiable incidents
at TAU in May. Health and safety audits are continuing, and the reward and recognition
programme continues to be rolled out across the organisation.

•

Mandy Kennedy, Stephanie Tipping, and Husain Al-Badry joined the meeting. 

16. ARTIFICIAL INTELLIGENCE WORKSHOP

Mandy Kennedy, Husain Al-Badry and Stefanie Tipping presented to the Board and conducted a
workshop.

• Management noted that TAU is using Artificial Intelligence (AI) in some areas such as the
marketing and communications team, but there is uneven adoption across the business. AI
poses some risks to the organisation, but also an exciting opportunity to enhance the
experiences that it provides and to make operations more efficient.

• The Board agreed and noted that AI could be a useful tool for TAU in many areas including
improving TAU’s understanding of what its audiences are looking for and how it analyses data
to refine its products. However, TAU will need to be careful about how it uses and manages the
data that feeds into AI tools.

• The Board and Management agreed that TAU is well-positioned to be a leader in the new AI
world given its many ‘touch points’ with the public, but the organisation will need to carefully
plan and implement robust guidelines to ensure that AI is used properly and ethically. Proper
implementation and training on AI tools will likely be transformative for some parts of the
business.

• The Board agreed that Management will frame up the next steps regarding AI before returning
to the Board for further discuss.

The Meeting ended at 2.41 p.m. The next meeting is scheduled for 27 August 2024. 

_____________________ _______________________ 
Chair Date 

S7(2)(f)(i) LGOIMA 1987















































S7(2)(f)(i),(h) LGOIMA 1987





S7(2)(f)(i),(h) LGOIMA 1987





Withheld due to NZX Listing Rules


	1 Board 31 July 2024 - Pubic Agenda
	13 Board 31 July 2024 - Register of Interests
	13.1 Board 31 July 2024 - 12 Month Rolling Calendar
	15 Board 31 July 2024 - CE Report (1)
	15 Board 31 July 2024 - CE Report (1)_Redacted
	15.1 Board 31 July 2024 - Financial Performance Report_Redacted



